
 

1 
 

Committee Administrator: Angie Howell 
Tel: 01884 234251 

Email: ahowell@middevon.gov.uk 
This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk 

 
 
 

 
Planning Committee 

 
Wednesday, 7 January 2026 at 2.15 pm 

Phoenix Chambers, Phoenix House, Tiverton 
 

Next ordinary meeting 
Wednesday, 11 February 2026 at 2.15 pm 

 
Please Note: This meeting will take place at Phoenix House and members of 
the public and press are able to attend via Teams. If you are intending to attend 
in person please contact the committee clerk in advance, in order that numbers 
of people can be appropriately managed in physical meeting rooms.  
 
The meeting will be hybrid and an audio recording made and published on 
the website after the meeting.  
 

To join the meeting click here  

Meeting ID: 312 375 406 34  
Passcode: 2tU6WN7K  

 
Membership 
 
Cllr S J Clist  
Cllr G Cochran  
Cllr F J Colthorpe  
Cllr L J Cruwys  
Cllr G Czapiewski  
Cllr G Duchesne  
Cllr C Harrower  
Cllr B Holdman  
Cllr N Letch  
Cllr M Jenkins  
Cllr S Robinson  

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.middevon.gov.uk/
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YjhjYzU1NjQtZGU5NS00MTk4LThkZDYtY2VkMjE3ZTI1Mzc2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%228ddf22c7-b00e-4429-82f6-108505d03118%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22b2c631b7-dc59-44f1-924e-be2694383484%22%7d


 

2 
 

Committee Administrator: Angie Howell 
Tel: 01884 234251 

Email: ahowell@middevon.gov.uk 
This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk 

A G E N D A 
 
Members are reminded of the need to make declarations of interest prior to any 
discussion which may take place 
 
1   APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS   

To receive any apologies for absence and notices of appointment of 
substitute. 

 
2   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

To receive any questions relating to items on the agenda from members 
of the public and replies thereto. 
 
Note: A maximum of 30 minutes is allowed for this item. 
 

3   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT   
To record any interests on agenda matters. 
 

4   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 5 - 16) 
To consider whether to approve the minutes as a correct record of the 
meeting held on 3 December 2025. 
 

5   CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS   
  To receive any announcements the Chair may wish to make.   

 
6   WITHDRAWALS FROM THE AGENDA   

To report any items withdrawn from the agenda.  
 

7   THE PLANS LIST  (Pages 17 - 48) 
To consider the planning applications contained in the list. 
 

8   MAJOR APPLICATIONS WITH NO DECISION  (Pages 49 - 52) 
To receive a list of major applications and potential site visits. 
 

9   APPEAL DECISIONS  (Pages 53 - 54) 
To receive a list of recent appeal decisions. 
 

http://www.middevon.gov.uk/


 

3 
 

Committee Administrator: Angie Howell 
Tel: 01884 234251 

Email: ahowell@middevon.gov.uk 
This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk 

Stephen Walford 
Chief Executive 

Tuesday, 30 December 2025 
 

 
Guidance notes for meetings of Mid Devon District Council  
 
From 7 May 2021, the law requires all councils to hold formal meetings in 
person. The Council will enable all people to continue to participate in meetings 
via Teams. 
If the Council experience technology difficulties at a committee meeting the 
Chairman may make the decision to continue the meeting ‘in-person’ only to 
conclude the business on the agenda. 
 
 
1. Inspection of Papers 
Any person wishing to inspect minutes, reports, or the background papers for 
any item on the agenda should contact Democratic Services at 
Committee@middevon.gov.uk 
 
They can also be accessed via the council's website Click Here  
 
Printed agendas can also be viewed in reception at the Council offices at 
Phoenix House, Phoenix Lane, Tiverton, EX16 6PP. 
 
2. Members’ Code of Conduct requirements 
When considering the declaration of interests and their actions as a councillor, 
Members are reminded of the requirements of the Members’ Code of Conduct 
and the underpinning Principles of Public Life: Honesty; Integrity; Selflessness; 
Objectivity; Accountability; Openness; Leadership.  
The Code of Conduct can be viewed here:  
 
3. Minutes of the Meeting 
Details of the issues discussed, and recommendations made at the meeting will 
be set out in the minutes, which the Committee will be asked to approve as a 
correct record at its next meeting. Minutes of meetings are not verbatim.   
 
4. Public Question Time  
If you want to ask a question or speak, email your full name to 
Committee@middevon.gov.uk by no later than 4pm on the day before the 
meeting. You must provide copies of questions to be asked no later than 4pm 
on the day before the meeting. Please refer to the Planning Committee 
Procedure Planning Committee Procedure (middevon.gov.uk). This will ensure 
that your name is on the list to speak and will help us ensure that you are not 
missed. Notification in this way will ensure the meeting runs as smoothly as 
possible.  

 
 
 
 

http://www.middevon.gov.uk/
mailto:Committee@middevon.gov.uk
https://democracy.middevon.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?Categories=
https://democracy.middevon.gov.uk/documents/s30898/CODEOFCONDUCTFORCOUNCILLORS.docx.pdf


 

4 
 

Committee Administrator: Angie Howell 
Tel: 01884 234251 

Email: ahowell@middevon.gov.uk 
This document is available on the Council's Website at: www.middevon.gov.uk 

5. Meeting Etiquette for participants 
• Only speak when invited to do so by the Chair. 
• If you’re referring to a specific page, mention the page number. 
 
For those joining the meeting virtually: 
• Mute your microphone when you are not talking. 
• Switch off your camera if you are not speaking. 
• Speak clearly (if you are not using camera then please state your name) 
• Switch off your camera and microphone after you have spoken. 
• There is a facility in Microsoft Teams under the ellipsis button called “turn on 
live captions” which provides subtitles on the screen. 
 
6. Exclusion of Press & Public 
When considering an item on the agenda, the Committee may consider it 
appropriate to pass a resolution under Section 100A (4) Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972 that the press and public be excluded from the 
meeting on the basis that if they were present during the business to be 
transacted there would be a likelihood of disclosure of exempt information, as 
defined under the terms of the Act. If there are members of the public and press 
listening to the open part of the  
meeting, then the Democratic Services Officer will, at the appropriate time, ask 
participants to leave the meeting when any exempt or confidential information is 
about to be discussed. They will be invited to return as soon as the meeting 
returns to open session. 
 
7. Recording of meetings 
All media, including radio and TV journalists, and members of the public may 
attend Council, Cabinet, PDG and Committee meetings (apart from items Media 
and Social Media Policy - 2023 page 22 where the public is excluded) you can 
view our Media and Social Media Policy here. They may record, film or use 
social media before, during or after the meeting, so long as this does not 
distract from or interfere unduly with the smooth running of the meeting. Anyone 
proposing to film during the meeting is requested to make this known to the 
Chairman in advance. The Council also makes audio recordings of meetings 
which are published on our website Browse Meetings, 2024 - 
MIDDEVON.GOV.UK.  
 
8. Fire Drill Procedure 
If you hear the fire alarm you should leave the building by the marked fire exits, 
follow the direction signs and assemble at the master point outside the 
entrance. Do not use the lifts or the main staircase. You must wait there until 
directed otherwise by a senior officer. If anybody present is likely to need 
assistance in exiting the building in the event of an emergency, please ensure 
you have let a member of Democratic Services know before the meeting begins 
and arrangements will be made should an emergency occur.  
 
9. WIFI 
An open, publicly available Wi-Fi network is normally available for meetings 
held in the Phoenix Chambers at Phoenix House. 

http://www.middevon.gov.uk/
https://www.middevon.gov.uk/media/355593/media-and-social-media-policy-2023-1311.pdf
https://democracy.middevon.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
https://democracy.middevon.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1


 

Planning Committee – 3 December 2025 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
MINUTES of a MEETING of the PLANNING COMMITTEE held on 3 December 2025 
at 2.15 pm 
 
Present   
Councillors L J Cruwys (Chair) 

S J Clist, G Cochran (Vice-Chair), 
F J Colthorpe, G Czapiewski, G Duchesne, 
C Harrower, B Holdman and S Robinson 
and G Westcott 
 

Apologies  
Councillors 
 

N Letch and M Jenkins 
 

 
Also Present 

 

Officers  John Millar (Area Team Leader), Adrian Devereaux (Area 
Team Leader), Claire Ellis (Conservation Officer), Holly 
Brimson (Planning Officer), Tia Carmichael (Democratic 
Services Officer) and Angie Howell (Democratic Services 
Officer) 
 

Councillors 
Online  
 

  
H Tuffin, A Glover and J Lock 
 

Officer Online Maria De Leiburne (Director of Legal, People & 
Governance (Monitoring Officer)) 
 

 
11 APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (00:04:09)  

 
Apologies were received from: 
 

 Cllr N Letch  

 Cllr M Jenkins who was substituted by Cllr G Westcott.  
 

 
12 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (00:04:27)  

 
Tim Barton referred to Application No. 25/00881/OUT 
 
1. Why is a further housing development being considered outside of the Hemyock 
Boundary? 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

Planning Committee – 3 December 2025 2 

2. As a daily witness to traffic turmoil on Culmstock Road, would traffic calming 
measures be mandated to reduce the impact of a fourth housing estate junction in 
the short, 120m strip of road in order to slow traffic speeds, reduce congestion and 
lessen hazardous situations, particularly at school start and end times and during 
funerals? 
 
3. Would the historic importance of nearby Hemyock Castle require significant 
archaeological explorations similar to those undertaken in the neighbouring Bailey 
Lodge property, and how would the developer ensure that the dwellings do not 
unduly affect both the historic landscape and the important local national landscape? 
 
4. Will the height of proposed dwellings be minimised to moderate the significant 
height advantage over existing housing both to the east and south of the proposed 
site? 
 
5. As part of the recent development nearby, will the public open space to the north, 
of the site be restored to suitable grassland as it is currently unfit for safe public use?  
 
6. To prevent an extended building programme lasting many years, will a time limit 
be imposed on the whole development build? 
 
7. Will a comprehensive plan be enforced to export any excavated, unwanted soil? 
 
8. Will contributions be made for expansion of the sewage treatment plant to cope 
with higher use and unpleasant odours, also, to local overcrowded schools, the fully 
committed Blackdown Medical Practice, and to help generate local employment 
opportunities? 
 
9. Why is a site visibility splay and a likely visual ‘dead spot’ in front of the adjacent 
cemetery not being considered in this application? 
 
10. Why has this application failed to address ownership of a new access road and 
major weaknesses of heavy good vehicles accessibility, turn-around provision and 
exit from the site? 
 
11. With 39 houses in Hemyock currently available for sale with three bedrooms or 
more, is there really a need for additional housing in this area? 
 

13 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT (00:07:45)  
 
Cllr F J Colthorpe declared a personal interest with regard to Planning Applications 
25/01237/HOUSE and 25/01239/LBC as she had known the applicant for many 
years and they had farmed alongside each other.  She had also helped the applicant 
with the application.  Considering this, she would leave the meeting when both 
applications were being considered and would not take part in the vote. 
 
Cllr S Clist made a declaration of interest in accordance with Protocol of Good 
Practice in dealing with Planning matters regarding Application 25/00881/OUT  as 
there had been a representation made from Hemyock Parish Council of which he 
was a Member.  However, he had not participated or voted on any planning matters 
discussed at the Parish Council meeting. 
 

Page 6



 

Planning Committee – 3 December 2025 3 

14 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (00:09:40)  
 
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 12 November 2025 were agreed as a 
true record and SIGNED by the Chair. 
 
 

15 CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS (00:10:05)  
 
The Chair had no announcements to make. 
 

16 WITHDRAWALS FROM THE AGENDA (00:10:13)  
 
The Chair announced that Planning Application No. 25/01453/FULL had been 
temporarily withdrawn from the Plans List as the applicant wished to submit amended 
plans.  
 

17 THE PLANS LIST (00:10:47)  
 
The Committee considered the applications in the *Plans List. 
 

1. 25/01237/HOUSE - Enlargement of existing extension to link property to 
outbuilding; extension and conversion of outbuilding to form habitable 
accommodation at Broxford Cottage, East Village, Crediton. 
 

The Planning Officer outlined the contents of the report by way of a presentation 
and highlighted the following:- 
 

 Plans 1 and 2 both related to Broxford Cottage, Crediton. 

 The site related to a Grade II listed building and sought planning permission to 
enlarge the existing extension to link the main property to the outbuilding and 
for the extension and conversion of the outbuilding to form habitable 
accommodation. 

 The main issues raised included: 
(i) Impact upon the Grade II listed building. 
(ii) Section 16 and Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 

Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 
(iii) Paragraph 212 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). 
(iv) Policies DM1 (high quality design) and DM25 (development affecting 

heritage assets) of the Mid Devon Local Plan 2013-2033. 

 In reaching a decision the Committee needed to be mindful of the duty as set 
out in Section 16 and Section 66 above, to have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the listed building, it’s setting and features of special 
architectural or historic interest which it possessed. 

 Paragraph 212 of the NPPF noted that when considering the impact of a 
proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, 
great weight should be given to the asset’s conservation.  The more important 
the asset was, the greater the weight should be.  This was irrespective of 
whether any potential harm amounted to substantial harm, total loss or less 
than substantial harm. 

 
 

Page 7



 

Planning Committee – 3 December 2025 4 

 It was identified that the harm to the listed building would be less than 
substantial as a result of proposed development.  The harm should be 
weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, including securing its 
optimum viable use. 

 A Bat Emergence Survey had been submitted in support of the application 
where a bat roost was identified, and a European Protected Species Licence 
would need to be obtained from Natural England before any work 
commenced.   The survey would be conditioned in the event of planning 
approval. 

 In accordance with comments received from South West Water, in the event 
of planning approval, a condition would be placed regarding the reuse of 
surface water or drainage within the curtilage of the dwelling. 

 It was considered that the provision of accessible accommodation would be a 
private benefit for the applicant and not a public benefit which would not 
outweigh the less than substantial harm to the listed building. 
 

Discussion took place regarding:- 
 

 How did heritage asset link to the building?  It was explained that there had 
been a change in terminology – as outlined in the NPPF a heritage asset 
was anything that may be important to someone at some point at some 
time because of some reason.  There was a difference between a 
designated heritage asset and a non-designated heritage asset.  A 
designated heritage asset included world heritage sites, scheduled 
monuments, registered parks and gardens, battlefields, shipwrecks, listed 
buildings and conservation areas. 

 Had the current extension been previously considered by the Planning 
Committee?  It was explained that the planning history was unknown as it 
was not mentioned on the List Description from 1985. 

 The difference between the two applications.  It was explained that the first 
application was in connection with the enlargement of the existing 
extension to link the property to the outbuilding.  The second application 
was to decide on listed building consent for the enlargement. 

 Whether the building could be viewed from the public highway?  It was 
confirmed that it was visible from the north, east and the south. 
 

It was RESOLVED that planning permission be granted subject to conditions to be 
delegated to the Development Management Manager in consultation with the Chair 
and Ward Member. 
 
Reason for approval:  The proposal, by virtue of its scale and design, would not be 
considered to result in harm to the character and appearance but would instead 
preserve and enhance the listed building. 
 
(Proposed by Cllr S Clist and seconded by Cllr C Harrower) 
 
Notes:- 

(i) Nichola Burley, Heritage Vision – Agent spoke on behalf of the 
applicant. 

(ii) Cllr H Tuffin spoke as the Ward Member 
(iii) Cllr F J Colthorpe left the meeting at 2.26pm prior to the application 

being considered. 

Page 8



 

Planning Committee – 3 December 2025 5 

 
 

2. 25/01239/LBC - Listed Building Consent for enlargement of existing extension 
to link property to outbuilding; extension and conversion of outbuilding to form 
habitable accommodation; re-roofing of existing extension with slate and 
replacement windows at Broxford Cottage, East Village, Crediton. 
 

The Planning Officer outlined the contents of the report by way of a presentation 
and highlighted the following:- 
 

 The application was as explained previously without the elements that 
related to highways, flood risk and ecology. 

 
Discussion took place regarding:- 
 

 Why the building had been listed originally?  It was explained that the 
building was listed in 1985.  A comprehensive programme had taken place 
to identify buildings that were of national importance. Reasons were not 
provided at that time however if there was thought to be features that were 
of architectural interest at the time then that would have been noted.  It 
was believed that the listing had not been amended since then. 

 Whether the extension was in place when the listing was made?  It was 
explained that this was unknown. 

 
It was RESOLVED to approve listed building consent– subject to conditions which 
are delegated to the Development Management Manager in consultation with the 
Chair and Ward Member, and this would include a condition that work should be 
carried out to prevent water pooling in the gully adjacent to the historical walling. 
 
Reason for approval:  The proposal, by virtue of its scale and design, would not be 
considered to result in harm to the character appearance but would instead preserve 
and enhance the listed building. 
 
(Proposed by Cllr S Clist and seconded by Cllr S Robinson) 

 
Notes:- 
 

(i) Cllr F J Colthorpe left the meeting at 2.26pm prior to the first application 
being considered. 

(ii) Cllr C Harrower left the meeting at 3.32pm and returned at 3.36pm - 
she was therefore unable to vote on this planning application. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 9



 

Planning Committee – 3 December 2025 6 

3. 25/01423/FULL - Change of use of ground floor and rear outbuilding from 
veterinary practice (Class E) to residential use and subdivision and alterations 
to existing residential units to provide a total of 7 self-contained apartments 
(Class C3) at The Laurels, Station Road, Tiverton. 

 
The Area Team Leader outlined the contents of the report by way of a 
presentation and highlighted the following:- 
 

 The building was currently vacant and slightly dilapidated. 

 The proposal was for the change of use of the ground floor and rear out 
building to residential use and the subdivision and alteration of existing 
residential units, which comprised two flats on the first and second floor to 
provide a total of seven self-contained flats. 

 The purpose of the development was to provide social rented housing 
specifically as temporary accommodation to prevent homelessness and for 
vulnerable people at risk of homelessness. 

 The main issues included:- 
(i) Principle of development (change of use). 
(ii) Design and impact on surroundings. 
(iii) Heritage impact. 
(iv) Highways and parking. 
(v) Flood risk. 

 The property was within the development area of Tiverton and was suitable 
for sub-division. 

 The units proposed would meet the necessary space standards. 

 There would be an accessible parking area to the front of the property 
which provided four car parking spaces.  However, due to the location 
being close to the town centre and the potential likelihood of many of the 
residents not having cars, this was not considered to be a substantial 
issue. 
 

Discussion took place regarding:- 
 

 The provision for electric mobility vehicles.  It was explained that this had 
not been identified in this application as the proposal was to convert a 
current building that had constraints and limitations. 

 How car parking spaces would be allocated?  It was explained that car 
parking spaces would be allocated in the most appropriate way depending 
upon the needs of the tenants. 

 
It was RESOLVED that planning permission be granted subject to conditions. 
 
(Proposed by Cllr B Holdman and seconded by Cllr S Clist) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



 

Planning Committee – 3 December 2025 7 

Notes:- 
(i) Cllr F J Colthorpe rejoined the meeting prior to the application being 

considered. 
(ii) Cllr S Clist made a declaration of interest in accordance with the 

Protocol of Good Practice in dealing with Planning matters in that 
approximately one year ago he had been shown around the building by 
officers but at no time had he expressed an opinion on planning 
matters. 

(iii) Sam Barnett, Housing Initiatives Officer MDDC spoke as the applicant. 
 
 

4. 25/01453/FULL - Variation of Condition 10 of Planning Permission 
24/00039/FULL (Erection of 7 affordable dwellings with car parking, 
landscaping and other minor works following demolition of existing garages) to 
allow substitution of approved plans to reflect revised landscaping strategy, 
and parking areas at Land at NGR 303611 111116, Somerlea, Willand. 
 
The application had been temporarily withdrawn as the applicant wished to 
submit amended plans. 
 

 
5. 25/00881/OUT - Outline application with all matters reserved, other than the 

point of access for the erection of up to 9 self or custom-build dwellings at 
Land at NGR 313524 113461, Culmstock Road, Hemyock. 

 
The Area Team Leader outlined the contents of the report by way of a 
presentation and highlighted the following:- 
 

 The application was an outline application for up to nine self or custom 
build dwellings and details of the access at this stage was provided. 

 It was located to the north of Hemyock Castle, a scheduled ancient 
monument and elements of it were Grade II* listed buildings.  It was 
separated from there by an existing development on the north side of 
Culmstock Road. 

 The site was separated from the Cavanna Homes development by the 
village cemetery of which there was a northern extension. 

 The application site included an adjoining bungalow of which part of the 
front garden would have to be altered to provide access. 

 The main issues included:- 
(i) Principle of development. 
(ii) 5YLS (Year Land Supply)/Application of the tilted balance. 
(iii) National landscape. 
(iv) Heritage. 
(v) Highway safety. 
(vi) Flood and drainage. 
(vii) Residential amenity. 
(viii) Ecology and biodiversity net gain. 

 The site was outside of the development limits of Hemyock however as the 
Local Plan was out of date due to the five year land supply (5YLS), the tilted 
balance was of particular importance. 
 

Page 11



 

Planning Committee – 3 December 2025 8 

 The indicative landscape mitigation plan showed how the site could be laid out 
in a sensitive way.  It was anticipated that any application of reserved matters 
coming forward would be in line with this plan, however there was scope for a 
different scheme to be provided to meet the requirements of preserving, 
conserving and enhancing the national landscape and the nearby settings. 

 The access would be widened in an eastward direction to provide space for 
two vehicles to pass. 

 The proposals included the widening of the road which would allow improved 
access particularly for larger vehicles. 

 The recommendation was to grant outline planning permission subject to a 
Section 106 agreement with various planning obligations. A further obligation 
securing rights of access to the cemetery extension for the Parish Council was 
to be added to the obligations noted in the Committee report. 

 
In response to public questions the Area Team Leader answered as follows:- 
 
Q1: Why is a further housing development being considered outside of the Hemyock 
Boundary? 
A1: Due to the Council’s 5YLS and Local Plan status, housing policies were deemed 
to be out of date requiring the application of the tilted balance in line with paragraph 
11d of the NPPF. 
 
Q2: As a daily witness to traffic turmoil on Culmstock Road, would traffic calming 
measures be mandated to reduce the impact of a fourth housing estate junction in 
the short, 120m strip of road in order to slow traffic speeds, reduce congestion and 
lessen hazardous situations, particularly at school start and end times and during 
funerals? 
A2: No, this was not a proposal or a request from Devon County Council (DCC) 
Highways Authority who would ultimately advise on such matters. 
 
Q3: Would the historic importance of nearby Hemyock Castle require significant 
archaeological explorations similar to those undertaken in the neighbouring Bailey 
Lodge property, and how would the developer ensure that the dwellings do not 
unduly affect both the historic landscape and the important local national landscape? 
A3: No, preliminary investigations had been carried out, and the Environmental 
Health Team and County Archaeologist did not consider that any further 
investigations were required. 
 
Q4: Will the height of proposed dwellings be minimised to moderate the significant 
height advantage over existing housing both to the east and south of the proposed 
site? 
A4: Consideration of final heights and impact on residential amenity and other 
irrelevant considerations would be dealt with at a reserved matters stage. 
 
Q5: As part of the recent development nearby, will the public open space to the 
north, of the site be restored to suitable grassland as it is currently unfit for safe 
public use?  
A5: This was not part of the application site and was not relevant to this application. 
 
 
 

Page 12



 

Planning Committee – 3 December 2025 9 

Q6: To prevent an extended building programme lasting many years, will a time limit 
be imposed on the whole development build? 
A6: No, this was not something that was considered reasonable or in line with best 
practice in respect to the six tests for conditions. 
 
Q7: Will a comprehensive plan be enforced to export any excavated, unwanted soil? 
A7: This was a matter that could be addressed at reserved matters stage when the 
final layout, levels and design were provided. 
 
Q8: Will contributions be made for expansion of the sewage treatment plant to cope 
with higher use and unpleasant odours, also, to local overcrowded schools, the fully 
committed Blackdown Medical Practice, and to help generate local employment 
opportunities? 
A8: Planning obligations may only be sought in certain circumstances.  In this case 
appropriate obligations had been requested where relevant and were listed in the 
terms highlighted within the Committee report. 
 
Q9: Why is a site visibility splay and a likely visual ‘dead spot’ in front of the adjacent 
cemetery not being considered in this application? 
A9: This had been considered and fully addressed by the DCC Highway Officer. 
 
Q10: Why has this application failed to address ownership of a new access road and 
major weaknesses of heavy good vehicle accessibility, turn-around provision and exit 
from the site?  
A10: Ownership of the new access road was not a relevant matter for consideration.  
The accessibility and turning was addressed through the submission of a vehicle 
street path analysis and that had been accepted by the County Highway Officer. 
 
Q11: With 39 houses in Hemyock currently available for sale with three bedrooms or 
more, is there really a need for additional housing in this area? 
A11: This was not strictly relevant to the consideration of this application.  There was 
an identified shortage of 5YLS and custom self-build housing in the district.  There 
were many differing circumstances why a particular house may be struggling to sell. 
 
Discussion took place regarding:- 

 

 Whether the area on the map earmarked as public open space currently 
existed?  It was explained that the land was public open space provided as 
part of the Cavanna Homes development. 

 Whether there was an existing right of way across the land toward the 
public open space?  It was believed that there was an intention to always 
provide access.  The Ecology and Biodiversity Net Gain reports had also 
factored in the two metre wider opening of the hedge.  

 Would the S106 be used for the benefit of Hemyock or was it for the open 
space to the north?  It was explained that the funds would be an 
appropriate contribution towards the provision of a public open space 
within the Parish. 

 
 
 
 

Page 13



 

Planning Committee – 3 December 2025 10 

 Whether the Self-Build List was up to date?  It was confirmed that it was up 
to date to a degree.  The monitoring data to the 31 October 2026 (the 
baseline for that is October 2024 to October 2025) was incomplete and 
there would not be any more data for the numbers of custom and self-build 
plots permissions until next spring in terms of the amount that was being 
provided. 

 The archaeology on site and whether a surface scrap been carried out?  It 
was believed that two trenches had been dug, and findings had been 
recorded and reported back to the County Archaeologists. 

 
Although this could not be guaranteed - it was noted that Members wished for 
£162,000 of Section 106 funds to be earmarked for affordable housing and be given 
to the Land Trust in order to facilitate affordable housing.   

 
It was RESOLVED that planning permission be granted subject to conditions and the 
prior completion of a S106 agreement which included the right of access for 
Hemyock Parish Council to the cemetery extension.   
 
(Proposed by Cllr G DuChesne and seconded by Cllr C Harrower) 
 
Notes:- 

(i) Tim Barton spoke as the objector. 
(ii) Darren Summerfield spoke as the applicant. 
(iii) Cllr S Clist spoke as the Ward Member. 
(iv) Cllrs S Clist and L Cruwys voted against the application. 

 
*List and report previously circulated. 
 
 

18 MAJOR APPLICATIONS WITH NO DECISION (03:23:03)  
 
The Committee had before it, and NOTED, a list *of major applications with no 
decision. 
 
The Committee agreed the following:- 
 

1. 25/01598/MFUL– to remain delegated as per the report. 
2. 25/01500/MOUT – to be considered at Planning Committee. 
3. 25/01516/MFUL – to remain delegated as per the report 
4. 25/01498/MOUT – to be considered at Planning Committee and a site visit to 

be organised. 
5. 25/01495/MOUT – to remain delegated as per the report. 

 
Note:  *List previously circulated. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



 

Planning Committee – 3 December 2025 11 

19 APPEAL DECISIONS (03:31:54)  
 
The Committee had before it, and NOTED, a *list of appeal decisions. 
 
Note: *List previously circulated. 
 
 
 
(The meeting ended at 5.47 pm) CHAIR 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA 1 

PLANNING COMMITTEE AGENDA - 7th January 2026 

Applications of a non-delegated nature 
 
 

Item No. Description 
 
 

  
01.  25/01453/FULL - Variation of Condition 10 of Planning Permission 24/00039/FULL 

(Erection of 7 affordable dwellings with car parking, landscaping and other minor works 
following demolition of existing garages) to allow substitution of approved plans to reflect 
revised landscaping strategy, and parking areas at Land at NGR 303611 111116, 
Somerlea, Willand. 
RECOMMENDATION 
Permitted with Conditions to Discharge 
 

  
  

02.  25/01301/FULL - Erection of 4 dwellings following demolition of 2 barns utilising the Class 
Q fallback position (24/01248/PNCOU) at Land and Building at NGR 307803 108310, 
Lower Moneysland, Kentisbeare. 
RECOMMENDATION 
Permitted with Conditions to Discharge 
 

  
  

03.  25/01364/HOUSE - Erection of extensions to North East and South West elevations at 
Ashfield, Seven Crosses Road, Tiverton. 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
 

  
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



AGENDA 2 

Plans List No. 1 
 
Application No. 25/01453/FULL 
 
Grid Ref:  303611 : 111116  
 
Applicant: Mr Mike Lowman, Mid Devon District Council  
   
Location: Land at NGR 303611 111116  

Somerlea  
Willand  
Devon  

   
Proposal: Variation of Condition 10 of Planning Permission 24/00039/FULL (Erection of 7 

affordable dwellings with car parking, landscaping and other minor works following 
demolition of existing garages) to allow substitution of approved plans to reflect 
revised landscaping strategy, and parking areas  

 
 
Date Valid:      20th October 2025 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 18



AGENDA 3 

 
 
 
APPLICATION NO:  25/01453/FULL 
 
REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE  
 
This application is required to be considered by the Planning Committee, in line with the Council’s 
adopted Scheme of Delegation, as Mid Devon District Council is the land owner and the houses 
will form part of the Council’s affordable rented housing stock. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Grant permission subject to conditions 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
The proposed development relates to a site within the defined settlement limit of Willand and is 
located on land between Somerlea and Somerville Road. There is a former commercial site to the 
north east, which is now used as car parking in association with a nearby commercial premises. A 
Public Right of Way (PROW), public footpath no. 4, Willand, runs along the north east boundary of 
the site, providing access between Somerlea/Fir Close and Somerville Road. 
 
Planning permission was granted under 24/00039/FULL for the erection of 7 affordable dwellings 
on this Council-owned land off Somerlea, Willand. The site is approximately 0.17ha and comprises 
a mix of hardstanding and poor quality grassed areas. The site contained several shed and garage 
structures, however these have since been demolished with planning permission 24/00039/FULL 
having been commenced.  
 
The approved dwellings are to be a terrace of seven 3 bed/4 person houses. The approved terrace 
of houses is to run parallel with the north east boundary. All properties are to be provided with their 
own private gardens, while the site will also include some additional landscaped areas. A palette of 
materials is proposed comprising rendered to the walls and metal standing seam roof. Solar PV 
panels would be installed on the roof slopes of the building. 
 
All of the units are to be built to be national space standard compliant, in respect to both overall 
floor area and bedroom sizes. Each property will include 2 double bedrooms with a floor area of 
11.5 square metres and a third single bedroom measuring 8.9 square metres. The scheme also 
provides for the storage of waste and recycling through the provision of a secured communal 
refuse storage area. Provision is also made for secure cycle storage within the gardens of each 
property. 
 
This application seeks to amend the condition 10 of the approved planning permission, which 
requires the provision of parking in accordance with the previously approved site plan.  
 
The application as submitted also included a request to vary the wording of condition 7 of 
24/00039/FULL, noting the revised landscaping strategy provided. It is however noted that 
condition 7 does not reference a plan number specifically and does not therefore require varying. 
As such, reference to condition 7 has been removed from the description of development. 
 
The proposed changes include a revised parking layout and landscaping scheme that responds to 
a correction to the land ownership plan, with land in neighbouring ownership mistakenly shown 

Page 19



AGENDA 4 

within the applicant’s ownership in the original scheme. The revised layout allows better access to 
neighbouring parking spaces, which are accessed through the site and revises the landscaping 
strategy accordingly. The revised plans also indicate the position of the bicycle storage required, 
as well as realignment of the proposed refuse storage area.  
 
With the exception of these changes detailed, the scheme will otherwise remain as approved. 
 

APPLICANT’S SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Application form, covering letter, amended plans 
 

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
 
24/00039/FULL - PERCON date 7th March 2025 
Erection of 7 affordable dwellings with car parking, landscaping and other minor works following 
demolition of existing garages   

  
DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES 
 
Mid Devon Local Plan 2013 – 2033 
 
S1 - Sustainable development priorities 
S2 - Amount and distribution of development 
S3 - Meeting housing needs 
S4 - Ensuring housing delivery 
S5 - Public open space 
S9 - Environment 
S13 - Villages  
DM1 - High quality design 
DM2 - Renewable and low carbon energy 
DM3 - Transport and air quality 
DM4 - Pollution 
DM5 - Parking 

 
Willand Neighbourhood Plan 2020 to 2033 
 
SD1 - High quality design in new developments 
SD2 - Sustainable design in new developments 
GI4 - New trees and planting 
TAC1 - Improving Transport, Accessibility and Connectivity 
TAC2 - Protecting the Footpath, Bridleway and Cyclepath Network 
 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 
National Planning Practice Guidance 
 

CONSULTATIONS 
 
WILLAND PARISH COUNCIL 
 
Willand Parish Council, in considering this variation application, has referred back to the original 
application - 24/00039/FULL - and is mindful of the concerns which the Parish Council raised at 

Page 20



AGENDA 5 

that time. It has also taken account of events since that time which have caused concern and led 
to a complaint being made that the conditions placed on the original application have not been 
dealt with correctly which in its view has shown a lack of due diligence and attention to detail. 
 
It has been noted that at the time of this consultation Condition 7 has not been discharged, or if it 
has it has not been placed on the Planning Portal. It therefore follows that, in the public domain, 
Condition 7 has not been completed in accord with Planning Permission 24/00039/FULL as stated 
in the proposal. 
 
The Covering Letter submitted with the application states: 
"The proposed amendments are designed to achieve the following improvements to the 
development; 
- Revised landscaping Strategy in response to an updated site boundary. Z47-ZP-A1- 
XX-DR-A-050-S01-P02 
- Revised access for neighbouring properties, Z49-ZED-AR-ST-DR-A-0010-P04" 
 
This appears to show that the original application was not presented correctly as the boundary of 
the site was wrongly shown which is concerning as the site is owned by Mid Devon District Council 
who were the applicant. They have applied through an agent who is also the supplier and builder 
of the dwellings. 
 
The rear access to neighbouring properties was also raised by the Parish Council in one of their 
earlier submissions which was ignored. 
 
The Parish Council also raise concern as to the apparent lack of due diligence and attention to 
detail being shown on the current application. 
 
On inspection of the Application Form it shows that the works were commenced on 15/08/2025 
and there is a commencement notice on the Portal for 15/08/25. That date is not correct as the 
works on site started on or about 21/07/25 and they were concrete pouring into the foundations all 
day and late into the evening on 14/08/25, which was the subject of a complaint made to MDDC by 
the Parish Council Chairman. 
 
In the Covering Letter seven (7) Proposed drawings are listed. The drawing numbers submitted in 
the Covering Letter do not match the numbers of the submitted drawings in two (2) instances. 
 
The Covering Letter states: "Revised landscaping Strategy in response to an updated site 
boundary. Z47-ZP-A1-XX-DR-A-050-S01-P02." The drawing number is not correct as it does not 
appear on the Proposed Drawings list nor does it appear on the submitted drawing of this title. In 
fact it looks to refer to another site completely. 
 
The drawing submitted shows an area between the tarmac and the rear accesses to the privately 
owned properties which has a different shading. Although the area is not marked with a 'D', as the 
same shaded areas around the dwellings, this appears to be of pebbles for drainage. Will this be a 
suitable surface and of the correct levels to allow vehicle access to the rear of the privately owned 
dwellings? These points need to be clarified before a decision is made. 
 
There is no suggested change in the wording for Condition 7. 
 
The Covering Letter also states: "Revised access for neighbouring properties, Z49-ZED-AR-ST-
DR-A-0010-P04." That is not the number on the submitted plan which has the arrows on showing 
the access to the rear of adjoining properties. The plan quoted does not show any access to 
adjoining properties. 

Page 21



AGENDA 6 

 
The suggested word change for Condition 10 appears to refer to a drawing where the suggested 
new parking layout is shown. 
 
Willand Parish Council is unable to make an informed response to the proposed changes until the 
discrepancies raised above have been resolved and clarified. 
 
HIGHWAY AUTHORITY 
 
The Highway Authority has considered this application and has no comments to make. 
 
SOUTH WEST WATER 
 
With reference to the planning application at the above address, the applicant/agent is advised to 
contact South West Water if they are unable to comply with our requirements as detailed below. 
 
Asset Protection 
Please find enclosed a plan showing the approximate location of a public 150mm sewer in the 
vicinity. Please note that no development will be permitted within 3 metres of the sewer, and 
ground cover should not be substantially altered. 
 
Should the development encroach on the 3 metre easement, the sewer will need to be diverted at 
the expense of the applicant.   
 
Please click here to view the table of distances of buildings/structures from  a public sewer. 
 
Further information regarding the options to divert a public sewer can be found on our website via 
the link below: 
 
https://www.southwestwater.co.uk/building-and-development/services/sewer-services-
connections/diversion-of-public-sewers  
 
Surface Water Services 
The applicant should demonstrate to your LPA that its prospective surface run-off will discharge as 
high up the hierarchy of drainage options as is reasonably practicable (with evidence that the Run-
off Destination Hierarchy has been addressed, and reasoning as to why any preferred disposal 
route is not reasonably practicable):  
 
 
1.Water re-use (smart water butts, rainwater harvesting, grey flushing toilets) 
2.Discharge into the ground (infiltration); or where not reasonably practicable, 
3.Discharge to a surface waterbody; or where not reasonably practicable, 
4.Discharge to a surface water sewer, highway drain, or another drainage system; or where not  
reasonably practicable, 
5.Discharge to a combined sewer. (Subject to Sewerage Undertaker carrying out capacity 
evaluation) 
 
No surface water strategy details were provided with this planning application. Please note that a 
discharge into the ground (infiltration) is South West Water’s favoured method and meets with the 
Run-off Destination Hierarchy. Should this method be unavailable, SWW will require clear 
evidence to demonstrate why the preferred methods listed within the Run-off Destination Hierarchy 
have been discounted by the applicant.    
 

Page 22



AGENDA 7 

For Highway run off please contact the Highway Authority to agree disposal method. 
 
I trust this provides confirmation of our requirements, however should you have any questions or 
queries, please contact the Planning Team on 01392 442836 or via email: 
DeveloperServicesPlanning@southwestwater.co.uk. 
 
 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 
This planning application has been advertised by means of a site notice erected by the Planning 
Officer, by notifying immediately adjoining neighbours in writing and by advertising in a local 
newspaper in accordance with the legal requirements for publicity on planning applications, and 
the Council’s Adopted Statement of Community Involvement July 2020. 
 
At the time of writing this report, letters of objection have been received from two local residents. 
The main points raised are summarised below: 
 

Concerns raised about the material finish of a section of the parking area between existing 
tarmac and the rear access of adjoining neighbours. It has been questioned what material 
will be used for the finish of this area, whether it will be suitable for regular vehicle use and 
whether the ground levels allow for adequate vehicular access to the adjoining parking 
areas. 
Concerns are also raised as to whether there is sufficient space to allow vehicular access 
to the properties to the rear, when all parking spaces are in use  

 

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS 
 
1.1 This application is made to vary condition 10 of planning permission 24/00039/FULL, a 

condition that references the site plan, submitted in relation to this approved scheme. 
 

1.2 The proposal is made to substitute several of the approved plans, with condition 10 to be 
amended to reflect these revised plans. The revisions are as a result of changes to the 
parking layout to allow better access to neighbouring parking areas, which are accessed 
through the site, and associated changes to the landscaping strategy that has been amended 
to accord with the revised parking layout. The revised plans also include details of the 
location of cycle storage areas, which weren’t shown on the original plans, and revised 
position of the bin and recycling box storage areas. 

 
1.3 As a starting point, the principle of the development as a whole has already been established 

so consideration needs only be given to the potential impact of the proposed changes to the 
original planning permission 24/00039/FULL. 

 
1.4 In assessing the changes, it is considered that the revisions are acceptable. The changes are 

considered to be minor in nature, and while there are changes to the position of some of the 
parking spaces and the landscaping strategy, the overall scale and appearance of the 
proposed development will remain similar to that previously approved. The approved 
properties will remain within the same footprint and there is no increase in size, or change in 
design. Similarly, the number of units will remain the same and there are no changes 
considered likely to be detrimental to the amenity of existing neighbouring residents. 

 
1.5 Willand Parish Council have commented, raising a number of points in regard to 

inconsistencies in the information contained within the application form and covering letter, 

Page 23



AGENDA 8 

and the plans submitted. The Parish Council considered that they were unable to make an 
informed response until those discrepancies had been resolved and clarified. 

 
1.6 The discrepancies noted revolve mainly around some errors made in the application covering 

letter, which on some occasions differ from plan numbers submitted. This is acknowledged, 
however the plans submitted are correct and able to be reviewed, allowing proper 
consideration to be given to the proposed changes. The applicant has clarified that the 
submitted plans are correct.  

 
1.7 The Parish Council have highlighted that the date of commencement referenced in the 

application form seems to be different from the date that the scheme actually commenced. 
This is noted, however has no bearing on the determination of this application. It is relevant 
however to note that the scheme has commenced, as this will have an impact on the 
conditions to be retained form the original planning permission. 

 
1.8 It is also noted that the Parish Council have sought further clarification on the surfacing of an 

area of the car park, on the south west boundary, adjoining neighbouring parking areas. This 
is shown as being ‘decorative pebbles used for drainage purposes’, where the Parish Council 
have asked for confirmation that this will be a suitable surface and correct levels to allow 
vehicular access to neighbouring land. Comments received by two neighbours have also 
queried this point. In response, the applicant has confirmed the following: 
 
“Just to clarify, the revised layout has been proposed to minimise cuts to the edging and to 
avoid an erratic finish. This layout will result in a much cleaner and more refined overall 
appearance. 
 
We are proposing a substantial build-up in the gravel area, consisting of 350mm of Type 3 
permeable sub-base topped with 130 mm of 20 mm gravel. Both layers will be thoroughly 
compacted, as this is essential for achieving a durable and long-lasting driveway. 
 
This specification will make the area fully suitable for vehicular access, and I trust it will help 
address any concerns raised by the council.” 
 
On this basis, it is considered that this section of the parking area will be suitably finished to 
accommodate access to neighbouring parking spaces. 

 
1.9 The changes made to the parking layout reposition the parking spaces within the site, 

however the amount of parking remains as approved. On this basis, the changes would not 
lead to any change in regard to highway safety. 
 

1.10 A couple of neighbours have queried whether there will be sufficient space to access existing 
neighbouring parking spaces, if the proposed parking spaces are in full use. A review of the 
proposed parking layout indicates that the neighbouring parking spaces will remain 
accessible. 

 
1.11 Following the original submission of this application, amended plans have been received, 

superseding the originally submitted plans. The changes are minimal in the context of the 
scheme, introducing an extended area of kerb within the site and a slight increase in grassed 
area. It is noted however that the kerb to be introduced within these amendments will prevent 
access to the garage door of a neighbouring property. The applicant has however advised 
that the neighbouring resident in this case has no legal rights of access to this garage, across 
the application site. Ultimately this is not a material planning consideration. Rights of access 
are a civil matter and preventing access in a case such as this does not constitute a reason 

Page 24



AGENDA 9 

for refusing planning permission. It is important to bear in mind however that the grant of 
planning permission does not override any existing covenants or other legal rights. 

 
1.12 The amended landscaping strategy does include a reduction in the amount of tarmac on site 

and increases the amount of permeable paving and native planting, with the planting areas 
revised slightly. The previous proposal was submitted before mandatory Biodiversity Net Gain 
(BNG) came into force so there is not a need to provide 10% BNG. Nonetheless, like the 
approved scheme, this proposal will still provide sufficient levels of improvements to exceed 
this 10% BNG figure.  

 
1.13 There are no other changes beyond those identified above. As such, the proposed variation 

of condition 10 is considered to be acceptable. 
 

1.14 As well as varying the requested condition, it will be necessary to remove condition 1, the 
original time limit for commencement condition, as the scheme has commended. Otherwise, 
the other conditions will be repeated as per the original decision, albeit with slight changes, 
where relevant, to reflect any conditions discharged and where there is reference to 
documents submitted in relation to the original planning permission but not included within 
this submission. 

 
1.15 The original scheme was also subject to a S106 agreement, dated 5th March 2025, requiring 

planning obligations of £2,453.85 to be secured for the provision of secondary school 
transportation. The S106 agreement includes provision for those obligations to be carried 
over to any subsequent scheme agreed under an application made in respect to Section 73 of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (variation of conditions). As such, those obligations 
will apply equally to this permission should it be granted. 

 
Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 places a statutory duty on public authorities in the exercise of 
their functions to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination and advance equality of 
opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do 
not share it and foster good relations between different people when carrying out their activities.  
This is called the Public Sector Equality Duty or "PSED".  No persons that could be affected by the 
development have been identified as sharing any protected characteristic. 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION OF APPROVAL 
 
The proposed variation of condition 10 of planning permission 24/00039/FULL would result in 
minor and acceptable changes to a previously approved scheme. The proposed development 
comprising the erection of 7 affordable dwellings with associated parking, landscaping and other 
minor associated works is considered to be acceptable. The site is located within the defined 
settlement limit of Willand, therefore the principle of residential development on this site is 
accepted. The overall design, scale and layout of the residential development is acceptable in this 
location not resulting in a significant detrimental impact on the landscape. The application should 
be approved unless any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF, taken as a whole. There 
are no technical reasons why the application should not be approved subject to appropriate 
mitigation secured through condition, whereby drainage measures, biodiversity and landscape can 
be adequately mitigated and enhanced. The proposal will lead to the delivery of seven new 
homes, of which all would be affordable dwellings weighs in favour of approval of the application 
providing public benefits and the site is considered to be a sustainable location within walking 
distance of service and facilities. Taking all the above into consideration, the application is 
considered to be acceptable meeting the requirements of policies S1, S2, S3, S4, S9, S13, DM1, 
DM2, DM3, DM4 and DM5 of the Mid Devon Local Plan 2013-2033, policies SD1, SD2, GI4, TAC1 

Page 25



AGENDA 10 

and TAC2 of the Willand Neighbourhood Plan 2020-2033 and the aims and objectives of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
CONDITIONS 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
plans listed in the schedule on the decision notice, being those approved in connection with 
planning permission 24/00039/FULL and as amended by this planning permission. 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the 
approved ‘Combined Construction Phase Plan, Construction Environmental Plan and Site 
Management Plan Ref. Z49_001 Combined_CPP_CEMP_SMP March 2025 - Revision Date 
16/09/2025’. 

 
3. Prior to the dwellings hereby permitted being first occupied, final detailed design for surface 

water drainage, including measures to prevent the discharge of surface water onto the 
highway, shall be installed in accordance with details that shall have first been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such detailed drainage scheme 
shall demonstrate that the prospective surface run-off will discharge as high up the hierarchy 
of drainage options as is reasonably practicable (with evidence that the Run-off Destination 
Hierarchy has been addressed, and reasoning as to why any preferred disposal route is not 
reasonably practicable). BRE 365 infiltration testing shall be carried out to determine the 
suitability of infiltration techniques. Following its installation the approved drainage scheme 
shall be permanently retained and maintained thereafter. 

 
4. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the details 

approved by discharge of conditions decision letter, dated 30th July 2025, in relation to 
condition 5 of planning permission 24/00039/FULL, in relation to the investigation of 
contaminated land and subsequent remediation strategy. 
 
Following completion of the approved remedial works, as detailed in the Remediation 
Method Statement (ref. P24-404rms - March 2025), approved in relation to planning 
permission 24/00039/FULL, a remediation validation report shall be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority for approval in writing. Occupation on the site, or parts of the site affected 
by land contamination, shall not take place until approval of the validation report has been 
granted.  

 

5. The development, hereby approved, shall be for affordable housing and retained as such. 
The affordable housing shall be provided in accordance with the approved scheme, detailed 
within the Affordable Housing Statement, dated 04/07/2025, approved by discharge of 
conditions decision letter, dated 26th March 2025, in relation to condition 6 of planning 
permission 24/00039/FULL. 

 

6. Notwithstanding the landscape strategy submitted, prior to above ground works of the 

development hereby approved, a final scheme of landscaping and planting shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This shall include 

details on tree species type, planting design and aftercare. All planting, seeding, turfing or 

earth reprofiling comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out within 

9 months of the substantial completion of the development or first planting season 

(whichever is sooner). Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years from the 

completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased, 

Page 26



AGENDA 11 

shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species. Once 

provided, the landscaping scheme shall be so retained. 

 

7. The development, hereby approved, shall be carried out in accordance with Section 6 

‘Mitigation and Recommendations’ of the Preliminary Bat Roost Assessment and Preliminary 

Ecological Appraisal carried out by Aval Consulting Group and dated 29th November 2023, 

submitted in relation to planning permission 24/00039/FULL. The development shall also be 

carried out in accordance with the Biodiversity Net Gain Assessment prepared by Aval 

Consulting Group dated 21st December 2023, submitted in relation to planning permission 

24/00039/FULL. 

 
8. Details of secure cycle storage facilities shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the 

approved cycle storage has been provided in accordance with the approved details. 

Following their provision these facilities shall be maintained and retained for the lifetime of 

the development. 

 
9. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the parking areas have been 

provided in accordance with the approved ‘Proposed Site Plan’, drawing number ‘Z49-ZED-

AR-ST-DR-A-0010-P05’. Following their provision these facilities shall be maintained and 

retained for the lifetime of the development.  

 
10. The materials to be used for all the external surfaces of the building shall be in accordance 

with the details outlined within the Design and Access Statement submitted in relation to 

planning permission 24/00039/FULL. Details for any proposed changes to the materials 

outlined would need to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority, with the development carried out in accordance with the approved materials and 

shall be so retained. 

 

REASONS FOR CONDITIONS 
  
1. For the avoidance of doubt as the development hereby proposed and in the interests of proper 

planning. 
 

2. In the interests of public health and highway safety, in accordance with policies S9, DM1, DM3 
and DM4 of the Mid Devon Local Plan 2013-2033 and the aims and objectives of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. This pre-commencement condition is required to ensure that the 
Construction and Environmental Management Plan is agreed prior to any construction works.  

 
3. In order to ensure that the proposed surface water drainage system will operate effectively 

and will not cause an increase in flood risk either on the site, adjacent land or downstream in 
line with SuDS for Devon Guidance (2017), national policies, including NPPF and PPG, and 
policies S9 and DM1 of the Mid Devon Local Plan 2013-2033.  The conditions should be pre-
commencement since it is essential that the proposed surface water drainage system is 
shown to be feasible before works begin to avoid redesign / unnecessary delays during 
construction when site layout is fixed. 

 
4. In the interests of building integrity and public safety to ensure that risks from land 

contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised in 

Page 27



AGENDA 12 

accordance with Policy DM4 of the Mid Devon Local Plan 2013-2033 and the aims and 
objectives of the National Planning Policy Framework. This is a pre-commencement condition 
as any issues found following the intrusive investigation and risk assessment would need to 
be addressed prior to construction of the development. 

 
5. To retain the use of these residential units for affordable housing in accordance with guidance 

in the National Planning Policy Framework, and in accordance with policy S3 of the Mid 
Devon Local Plan 2013 - 2033. 

 
6. To ensure that the development makes a positive contribution to the character and amenity of 

the area in accordance with policy DM1 of Mid Devon Local Plan 2013-2033 
 

7. To enable biodiversity net gain within development in accordance with Mid Devon Local Plan 
2013-2033: Policy S9 Environment and national policy and to ensure the protection of 
endangered species, under the European Habitats Directive and the Conservation of Natural 
Habitats and of Wild Fauna and Flora [Council Directive 92/43/DDC] which is implemented in 
the UK by the Conservation [Natural Habitats & Conservation] Regulations 1994 [Statutory 
Instrument No 2716] amended in 2007 and in accordance with policy DM1 of Mid Devon Local 
Plan 2013-2033. 

 
8. To promote sustainable travel and in the interests of highway safety, in accordance with 

policies DM3 and DM5 of the Mid Devon Local Plan 2013 and the aims and objectives of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
9. In the interests of highway safety and to ensure adequate on-site parking facilities are 

available for traffic attracted to the site, in accordance with policies DM3 and DM5 of the Mid 
Devon Local Plan 2013 and the aims and objectives of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
10. To ensure the use of materials appropriate to the development in order to safeguard the visual 

amenities of the area in accordance with Mid Devon Local Plan 2013-2033 Policies S9 and 
DM1. 

 
INFORMATIVES 
 

The applicant/developer is reminded that this development is subject to a Section 106 
agreement dated 5th March 2025, signed in relation to original planning permission 
24/00039/FULL. The planning obligations imposed apply equally to this grant of planning 
permission.  
 
The applicant/agent is reminded of the comments received from South West Water (SWW), 
dated 10th January 2024, in relation to planning permission 24/00039/FULL, and as repeated in 
comments dated 29th October 2025,  advising of the presence of a public sewer, in the vicinity 
of the development, as well as detailing the developer’s obligations in respect to development 
in close proximity to these assets. The developer is advised to contact South West Water if 
they are unable to comply with their requirements. Should the development encroach on the 3 
metre easement, these assets will need to be diverted at the expense of the applicant. 
 
The developer is reminded of the comments of Devon County Council Rights of Way Officer, in 
their response of 16th January 2024, in relation to planning permission 24/00039/FULL, which 
notes the presence of public footpath No.4, Willand running adjacent to the application site. 
The applicant must ensure that the path remains open and available for the public to use 
during site preparation and construction. If a temporary closure is required the applicant would 

Page 28



AGENDA 13 

need to apply to the County Council for a Temporary Traffic Regulation Order – see below – 
but please note that a temporary closure will not be granted to enable construction on the line 
of the right of way unless a permanent diversion order has been made and confirmed. 

 
POSITIVE WORKING STATEMENT 
 
In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework the Council has 
worked in a positive and pro-active way and has imposed planning conditions to enable the grant 
of planning permission. 
 
BNG - BIODIVERSITY NET GAIN 
 
The effect of paragraph 13 of Schedule 7A to the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 is that 
planning permission granted for the development of land in England is deemed to have been 
granted subject to the condition “(the biodiversity gain condition”) that development may not begin 
unless: 
 

(a) a Biodiversity Gain Plan has been submitted to the planning authority, and 
(b) the planning authority has approved the plan.  
 

The planning authority, for the purposes of determining whether to approve a Biodiversity Gain 
Plan if one is required in respect of this permission would be Mid Devon District Council. 
 
There are statutory exemptions and transitional arrangements which mean that the biodiversity 
gain condition does not always apply. These are listed below. 
 
Based on the information available this permission is considered to be one which will not 
require the approval of a biodiversity gain plan before development is begun because one 
or more of the statutory exemptions or transitional arrangements in the list below is/are 
considered to apply. 
 
Statutory exemptions and transitional arrangements in respect of the biodiversity gain condition. 
 
1. The application for planning permission was made before 12 February 2024. 
2. The planning permission relates to development to which section 73A of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (planning permission for development already carried out) applies.  
3. The planning permission was granted on an application made under section 73 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 and  

(i)the original planning permission to which the section 73 planning permission relates* was 

granted before 12 February 2024; or 

(ii)the application for the original planning permission* to which the section 73 planning 

permission relates was made before 12 February 2024. 
 4.  The permission which has been granted is for development which is exempt being:  

4.1  Development which is not ‘major development’ (within the meaning of article 2(1) of the 
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015) 
where: 

i) the application for planning permission was made before 2 April 2024;   

ii) planning permission is granted which has effect before 2 April 2024; or  

iii) planning permission is granted on an application made under section 73 of the 

Town and Country Planning Act 1990 where the original permission to which the 

section 73 permission relates* was exempt by virtue of (i) or (ii).  

Page 29



AGENDA 14 

4.2 Development below the de minimis threshold, meaning development which: 
i) does not impact an onsite priority habitat (a habitat specified in a list published 

under section 41 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006); and 

ii) impacts less than 25 square metres of onsite habitat that has biodiversity value 

greater than zero and less than 5 metres in length of onsite linear habitat (as defined 

in the statutory metric). 

4.3 Development which is subject of a householder application within the meaning of article 2(1) 

of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 

2015. A “householder application” means an application for planning permission for 

development for an existing dwellinghouse, or development within the curtilage of such a 

dwellinghouse for any purpose incidental to the enjoyment of the dwellinghouse which is not 

an application for change of use or an application to change the number of dwellings in a 

building. 

4.4 Development of a biodiversity gain site, meaning development which is undertaken solely or 

mainly for the purpose of fulfilling, in whole or in part, the Biodiversity Gain Planning 

condition which applies in relation to another development, (no account is to be taken of any 

facility for the public to access or to use the site for educational or recreational purposes, if 

that access or use is permitted without the payment of a fee). 

4.5   Self and Custom Build Development, meaning development which: 

i) consists of no more than 9 dwellings; 

ii) is carried out on a site which has an area no larger than 0.5 hectares; and 

iii) consists exclusively of dwellings which are self-build or custom housebuilding (as 

defined in section 1(A1) of the Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Act 2015). 

4.5   Development forming part of, or ancillary to, the high speed railway transport network 
(High Speed 2) comprising connections between all or any of the places or parts of the 
transport network specified in section 1(2) of the High Speed Rail (Preparation) Act 2013. 

 
* “original planning permission means the permission to which the section 73 planning 
permission relates” means a planning permission which is the first in a sequence of two or 
more planning permissions, where the second and any subsequent planning permissions 
are section 73 planning permissions. 

 
 
The Human Rights Act 1998 came into force on 2nd October 2000. It requires all public authorities 
to act in a way which is compatible with the European Convention on Human Rights. This report 
has been prepared in light of the Council's obligations under the Act with regard to decisions to be 
informed by the principles of fair balance and non-discrimination. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 30



AGENDA 15 

Plans List No. 2 
 
Application No. 25/01301/FULL 
 
Grid Ref:  307803: 108310  
 
Applicant: A Lobjoit  
   
Location: Land and Building at NGR 307803 108310  

Lower Moneysland  
Kentisbeare  
Devon  

   
Proposal: Erection of 4 dwellings following demolition of 2 barns utilising the Class Q fallback 

position (24/01248/PNCOU)  
 
 
Date Valid:      26th September 2025 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 31



AGENDA 16 

 
APPLICATION NO:  25/01301/FULL 
 
Site Visit: No      
 
COMMITTEE REASON 
 
This application is required to be considered by the Planning Committee, in line with the Council’s 
adopted Scheme of Delegation, as the land is held under the Power of Attorney of one of the 
District Councillors. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Grant permission subject to: 

 

(i) The prior completion of a Section 106 planning obligation (in a form acceptable to Devon 

County Council's solicitor(s)) before the decision notice granting planning permission is issued, to 

secure the following: 

 

a) Secure a contribution of £2,718 towards secondary school transport costs; 

 

(ii) Conditions, as set out at the end of this report. 

 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
Erection of 4 dwellings following demolition of 2 barns utilising the Class Q fallback position 
(24/01248/PNCOU). 
 
The application seeks full planning permission for the demolition of four agricultural barns and the 
construction of four dwellings at Lower Moneysland Farm, located in the countryside to the east of 
Blackborough. 
 
The site comprises a farmyard area containing four barns of varying size and condition, 
surrounded by modified grassland and hardstanding. The wider landholding includes agricultural 
fields and woodland beyond the red line. 
 
The proposed development would replace the existing barns with four detached dwellings (Plots 
1–4), broadly reflecting the footprint and general arrangement of buildings approved under a 
recent Class Q prior approval. The dwellings vary in size between three and four bedroom units 
and adopt a simple agricultural vernacular using stone, render, timber cladding and slate roofs. 
Each plot includes private gardens, on-plot parking, and landscaping. Existing access to the 
farmyard would be retained, with a shared entrance track leading to individual driveways. 
 
The scheme incorporates a drainage strategy with a proposed detention basin, new hedgerow 
planting, tree planting, wildlife buffer zones, ecological mitigation, integrated bat/bird features, and 
Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) habitat creation as set out in the Post-Intervention Plan. 
 
The dwellings would be sited entirely within the developed farmyard footprint, avoiding 
encroachment into surrounding agricultural fields. 
 
 

Page 32



AGENDA 17 

APPLICANT’S SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 

 Application form 

 Existing and proposed plans 

 Design and Access Statement 

 Ecological Impact Assessment (Lakeway Ecology) 

 Wildlife Trigger List 

 Baseline and Post-Intervention Habitat Plans 

 Biodiversity Net Gain calculation (metric and assessment) 

 Flood Risk Assessment 

 Foul and Surface Water Drainage Strategy 

 Foul Drainage Assessment 

 Climate Emergency Statement 

 Land Charges plan 
 
RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
 
24/01248/PNCOU - APA date 13th February 2025 
Prior notification for the change of use of 2 agricultural buildings to 4 dwellings under Class Q   
 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES 
 
Mid Devon Local Plan Review 2013 – 2033 
S1 – Sustainable development priorities 
S2 – Amount and Distribution of Development  
S3 – Meeting Housing Needs 
S4- Ensuring Housing Delivery  
S9 – Environment 
S14- Countryside  
DM1 – High quality design 
DM3 – Transport and air quality 
DM4 – Pollution 
DM5 – Parking 
DM27 Other protected sites  
 
National Planning Policy Framework 
National Planning Practice Guidance 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Kentisbeare Parish Council 
No objection  
 
DCC Highway Authority 
No comments and no objection. Access arrangements acceptable given existing farm access and 
low traffic generation relative to historic agricultural use. 
 
South West Water 
Provided standard advisory comments regarding foul connections and discharge hierarchy. No 
objection. 
 
DCC Ecology 

Page 33



AGENDA 18 

No objection subject to conditions requiring: 
 

 Ecological Mitigation & Enhancement Plan 

 Sensitive lighting strategy 

 Bat licence mitigation acknowledgement 

 Net Gain delivery and 30-year management 
 
DCC Minerals and Waste 
No objection; development does not constrain mineral safeguarding area further than existing 
buildings. 
 
DCC Pupil Place Planning 
Request £2,718 towards secondary school transport (being £4.77 x 190 days in the academic year 
x 5 years at secondary school x 0.60 secondary pupils). 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
No representation received from neighbour or the general public  
 
MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS 
 
The main material considerations are: 
 

1.Principle and policy 
2.Design and impact on the rural character 
3.Highway safety and access 
4.Ecology, biodiversity and protected species 
5.Flood risk and drainage 
6.Residential amenity 
7.Planning Obligation  
8.Planning balance 

 
 

1. Principle and policy 
 

1.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that planning 
applications be determined in accordance with the Development Plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. Policies S1 and S14 guide the consideration of 
development in the countryside, restricting new residential development unless specific 
circumstances apply. 

 
1.2 In this case, there is a material fall-back position through the extant Class Q prior 
approval for the conversion of two existing barns to four dwellings. The fall back is recent, 
implementable, and relates to the same quantum of residential development now sought. 
The current proposal does not depart from the principle of four dwellings on the site; rather, it 
introduces a coordinated layout of new-build units that continue to utilise the existing 
farmyard footprint. This is given significant weight. 

 
1.3 Policy S14 permits residential development in the countryside where it is well-integrated 
with the local landscape, retains the appearance of rural buildings or clusters, and avoids 
unacceptable impacts. The proposal is confined strictly within the established farmyard and 
does not spread into the adjoining fields. The replacement of agricultural sheds with well-

Page 34



AGENDA 19 

designed dwellings represents a logical and contained redevelopment of a previously 
developed area within a wider agricultural holding. 

 
1.4 Taking the fall-back position, the contained nature of the development, and the lack of 
identified harm, the principle of development is considered acceptable. 

 
2.  Design, layout and impact on the rural character 
 
2.1 Policy DM1 requires development to demonstrate high quality design that reinforces 
local character, creates visually attractive places, and respects the form, scale and pattern of 
surrounding development. The site currently contains several agricultural sheds of poor 
visual quality. Their removal offers the opportunity for a substantial visual enhancement. 

 
2.2 The proposed dwellings adopt a simple and contemporary agricultural vernacular with 
pitched roofs, stone and render walls, and natural slate finishes. This restrained palette 
aligns well with the rural setting and avoids suburbanising influences. Each dwelling has 
been designed to read as a modern agricultural building reinterpretation, rather than a 
suburban estate form. 

 
2.3 The layout follows the established pattern of the existing farmyard, retaining an open 
central space and ensuring the dwellings sit comfortably within the yard. Garden areas have 
been positioned to maintain separation from the surrounding agricultural land and to avoid 
harm to the wider landscape. The block plan demonstrates clearly that the development will 
remain visually contained. 

 
2.4 The proposed landscaping incorporates substantial new hedgerow planting, tree 
planting, and wildlife buffer areas. These features soften the built form and provide a 
coherent transition between the development and the wider countryside. The Design and 
Access Statement emphasises the importance of maintaining the perception of the site as a 
farm cluster; the proposal achieves this through scale, spacing and materials. 

 
2.5 Longer views of the site are limited owing to topography and boundary vegetation. 
Where visible, the proposed dwellings would reduce visual clutter compared to the existing 
sheds and achieve a more harmonious appearance. 

 
2.6 It is considered that the development meets the requirements of DM1 and S9, delivering 
a notable improvement to the appearance of the site and preserving the rural character of 
the area. 

 
3. Highway safety and parking 

 
3.1 The existing access track, historically used for agricultural purposes, will serve the new 
dwellings. The Highway Authority raises no objection, noting that expected vehicle 
movements remain low and likely to be lower than when the farm operated more intensively.  
 
3.2 The development utilises the existing farmyard entrance, which has previously been 
accepted as suitable under the class Q prior approval. The Highway Authority raises no 
objection to its continued use, noting that the access arrangements remain safe an 
appropriate for the anticipated level of residential traffic. No alterations to the entrance are 
required. 

 
3.3 Parking provision meets the standards of Policy DM5, and the internal layout allows safe 
turning for vehicles, ensuring forward gear egress onto the lane. 

Page 35



AGENDA 20 

 
3.4 No harm to highway safety has been identified. 

 
4. Ecology, biodiversity and protected species 

 
4.1 The Council, as the competent authority, has a statutory duty under Regulation 9 of the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) to have regard to the 
requirements of the Habitats Directive in the exercise of its functions. Where a development 
proposal affects a European Protected Species (EPS), the Local Planning Authority must 
consider whether the three licensing tests are likely to be met, even though the decision to 
grant an EPS licence rests with Natural England. 

 
4.2 A comprehensive Ecological Impact Assessment (Lakeway Ecology, dated 24th 
September 2025) has been submitted. Survey work confirmed the presence of a whiskered 
bat day roost within one of the agricultural buildings proposed for demolition. The roost 
consists of a maximum of two individuals and is assessed as being of low conservation 
significance. No other bat roosts were identified within the remaining buildings. A range of 
other species, including pipistrelle, brown long-eared, serotine and Myotis species, were 
recorded foraging or commuting in the wider area, but with no additional roosts identified. 

 
4.3 Evidence of nesting birds was identified within the fabric of existing bonds. Works to 
demolish the buildings therefore carry a risk of disturbing active nests during the breeding 
season. A timing restriction will be required to ensure that the demolition or vegetation 
clearance does not take place between March and August inclusive, unless a pre works 
check buy a suitably qualified ecologists confirms the absence of active nests. This measure 
safeguards compliance with the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 

 
4.4 To avoid light spill onto key foraging and commuting habitats, external lighting 
associated with the development will be strictly controlled through a lighting strategy. 
Directional, low-intensity lighting will be required to maintain light levels below sensitive 
threshold and to ensure that dark corridors are preserved around boundary vegetation. 

 
4.5 Given the confirmed presence of a whiskered bat roost, demolition of the building will 
require a European Protected Species licence from Natural England. The Local Planning 
Authority must therefore consider whether the three derogation tests are likely to be met. 

 
4.6 Regulation 9 (5) of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 (“the 
Regulations”) provides that, “A competent authority, in exercising any of their functions, must 
have regard to the requirements of the Habitats Directive so far as they may be affected by 
the exercise of those functions”. In exercising their duty, the Local Planning Authority should 
assess the proposal against the three derogation tests of the Habitats Regulations 2010, 
these being: 

 

 The development must meet a purpose of 'preserving public health or public safety or 
other imperative reasons of overriding public interest including those of a social or 
economic nature and beneficial consequences of primary importance for the 
environment' 

 There is no satisfactory alternative' 

 development 'will not be detrimental to the maintenance of the population of the 
species concerned at a favourable conservation status in their natural range' 

 

Page 36



AGENDA 21 

4.7 In assessing the first two of these tests, the proposal satisfies them. The development 
replaces degraded agricultural barns with four well-designed dwellings, delivering clear 
environmental and landscape improvements, enhancing energy efficiency, securing 
ecological enhancements and providing a coherent redevelopment of previously developed 
land in the countryside. The scheme is directly linked to a lawful fallback position for 
residential use and represents a one-off proposal specific to this farmyard, with no realistic 
alternative layout or design that would allow the confirmed roost to be retained within the 
existing building fabric. 

 
4.8 With regard to the third test, the Lakeway Ecology Ecological Impact Assessment 
confirms the presence of a small whiskered bat day roost within one of the barns proposed 
for demolition. The roost supports only two individuals and is of low conservation status. 
Mitigation and compensation include integrated bat access features within Plot 4, 
installation of tree-mounted bat boxes, controlled timings of works, the adoption of a 
sensitive lighting strategy and supervised demolition where required. These measures 
replace and enhance roosting opportunities and maintain dark corridors across the site. The 
mitigation package ensures the favourable conservation status of the species will be 
maintained within its natural range. 

 
5. Flood Risk and drainage 

 
5.1 The site lies in flood zone 1. The Flood Risk Assessment confirms fluvial or surface 
water flood risk concerns.  

 
5.2 The surface water will be managed via detention basin with controlled discharge, 
following the drainage hierarchy. The scheme meets requirements of policy DM4. South 
West Water raised no objection. 

 
5.3 Foul drainage will be managed using package treatment plants, as set out in drainage 
strategy. 

 
5.4 The proposal are acceptable in respect of flood risk and drainage.  

 
6. Residential Amenity 

 
6.1 The nearest residential properties are some distance from the site, and no impact are 
expected in terms of overlooking, overshadowing or loss of privacy. 

 
6.2 Each dwelling has an appropriate level of private outdoor space, and the layout avoids 
conflicts between plots. 

 
6.3 Construction management measures can be secured by conditions to minimize 
temporary impacts.  

 
7. Planning Obligations 

 
7.1 DCC Pupil Place Planning advise that the four family dwellings are expected to generate 

an additional 1.0 primary pupil and 0.60 secondary pupils, With a direct impact on 
Kentisbeare Church of England primary school and Uffculme School. Forecasts Indicate 
that local primary and secondary schools will have sufficient capacity, so no contribution 
towards education infrastructure is sought. However, as pupils from the site are entitled 
to transport to Uffculme school and development will add to those costs, DCC request a 
financial contribution of £2,718 towards secondary school transport. This figure is based 

Page 37



AGENDA 22 

on the current contract cost of £4.77 per pupil per day, multiple by 190 school days, five 
years at secondary school and 0.60 secondary pupils, and will be subject to indexation 
using RPI from the date a section 106 agreement is signed. DCC will also seek recovery 
of their legal and mood monitoring costs associated with securing an administering the 
contribution. The agent has confirmed on behalf of the applicant a direct payment will be 
made to meet DCC's requirements, and contribution will be secured accordingly to 
ensure the transport impacts of the development are appropriately mitigated. 

 
8. Planning Balance 

 
8.1 The proposal represents a coherent and well-designed redevelopment of an existing 

farmyard, delivering visual enhancement, ecological betterment and contained pattern of 
rural residential development supported by a credible fall-back position. 

 
8.2 No technical objection has been raised, and ecological impact can be effectively 

mitigated, with significant net gain addressed. 
 

8.3 The proposal complies with the Development Plan when considered as whole, and 
approval is therefore recommended.  

 
REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION  
 
The proposed development is considered to be acceptable in principle, reflecting the scale and 
arrangement of buildings already approved under prior approval, and delivering enhancements in 
layout, design quality, ecology and landscape integration. The scheme results in no unacceptable 
impact on the rural character of the area, highway safety, residential amenity, drainage or other 
technical matters. Ecological impacts have been fully assessed and can be appropriately mitigated 
with measurable net gain. For these reasons it is considered appropriate to recommend approval 
subject to conditions. The proposal accords with Policies S1,S2, S3,S4, S9, S14, DM1, DM3, 
DM4, DM5 and DM27 of Mid Devon Local Plan and the provision of NPPF.  
 
CONDITIONS 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission. 
 

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
plans listed on the decision notice. 

 
3. Prior to commencement of development, an Ecological Compensation and Enhancement 

Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
plan shall include measures set out in the Ecological Impact Assessment prepared by 
Lakeway Ecological Consultancy Ltd (dated 11 September 2025, ref: 25-1111-EcIA-ES), 
including a timber cladding feature on the west elevation of Plot 4 with three bat access 
slots to compensate for the loss of the whiskered bat day roost, two bat boxes to be 
installed on trees within the woodland to the east of the site, two integrated bat boxes and 
two integrated bird boxes suitable for swift to be built into each new dwelling, and 
hedgehog access holes to be created in any boundary fencing or walls to allow movement 
between gardens. All features shall be installed in accordance with protected species 
licencing requirements where necessary, or prior to occupation and retained thereafter. 

 

Page 38



AGENDA 23 

4. Prior to the installation of any external lighting, a sensitive lighting strategy shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The strategy shall be 

in accordance with the Ecological Impact Assessment prepared by Lakeway Ecological 

Consultancy Ltd (dated 11 September 2025, ref: 25-1111-EcIA-ES) and shall demonstrate 

how lighting will avoid spill onto site boundaries, retained habitats and bat roost features, 

and minimise disturbance to wildlife. 

 

5. The development hereby approved shall be undertaken in full accordance with the Post 
Intervention Habitat Plan and Appendix 1: Creation, Management and Maintenance of the 
Biodiversity Net Gain Assessment produced by Lakeway Ecological Consultancy Ltd 
(dated 11 September 2025, report reference 25-1111-BNG-ES). The initial habitat works, 
including all ground preparation, seeding, planting and protection measures, shall be 
completed in full prior to the occupation of the development. Notification of the initial habitat 
works completion date, along with photographic evidence, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority within 30 days of this date to discharge 
this condition. The Biodiversity Net Gain management and maintenance period shall be no 
less than 30 years from this date. 

 
6. The surface water drainage scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved 

details on Foul and Surface Water Drainage Strategy dated 22th September 2025 before 
the development is first brought into use and shall be retained and maintained thereafter 

 
7. Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 of The Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that 
Order with or without modification) no development of the types referred to in Classes A, 
AA, B, C, D and E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 relating to the enlargement, improvement or 
other alteration of a dwellinghouse, enlargement by construction of an additional storey, 
addition or alteration to the roof, provision of a porch and provision within the curtilage of 
the dwellinghouse of any building or enclosure, swimming or other pool, container for 
domestic heating purposes for storage of oil of liquid petroleum gas, shall be undertaken 
within the application site without the Local Planning Authority first granting planning 
permission. 

 
REASONS FOR CONDITIONS 
 

1. In accordance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 

3. In the interests of biodiversity and protected species in accordance with Policy DM28. 
 

4. To safeguard foraging and commuting routes for bats in accordance with Policy DM28. 
 

5. To ensure delivery and long-term management of Biodiversity Net Gain in accordance with 
Schedule 7A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 

 
6. To ensure satisfactory foul drainage arrangements and prevent pollution in accordance 

with Policy DM4. 
 

7. To retain control over future development in this sensitive rural location in accordance with 
Policies S14. 

Page 39



AGENDA 24 

 
INFORMATIVES 
 
The development will result in the loss of a confirmed bat roost. As bats and their roosts are legally 
protected, works affecting the roost must not commence until a European Protected Species 
(EPS) licence has been obtained from Natural England. It is the applicant’s responsibility to ensure 
that all necessary licences are in place prior to any works that may affect bats or their roosts. 
 
All nesting birds, their eggs and active nests are protected by law. Vegetation clearance and 
demolition works should be timed to avoid the bird nesting season (March to August inclusive). 
 
If works are required during this period, a check for active nests must be carried out by a 
suitably qualified ecologist, and any active nests must be protected until the young have 
fledged. 
 
BNG – Biodiversity Net Gain  
 
Is BNG Required? Yes 
 
The effect of paragraph 13 of Schedule 7A to the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 is that 
planning permission granted for the development of land in England is deemed to have been 
granted subject to the condition "(the biodiversity gain condition") that development may not begin 
unless:  
 
(a) a Biodiversity Gain Plan has been submitted to the planning authority, and 
(b) the planning authority has approved the plan. 
 
The planning authority, for the purposes of determining whether to approve a Biodiversity Gain 
Plan if one is required in respect of this permission would be Mid Devon District Council. 
 
Based on the information available this permission is considered to be one which will require the 
approval of a biodiversity gain plan before development is begun because none of the statutory 
exemptions or transitional arrangements are considered to apply. 
 
The Human Rights Act 1998 came into force on 2nd October 2000. It requires all public authorities 
to act in a way which is compatible with the European Convention on Human Rights. This report 
has been prepared in light of the Council's obligations under the Act with regard to decisions to be 
informed by the principles of fair balance and non-discrimination. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 40



AGENDA 25 

Plans List No. 3 
 
Application No. 25/01364/HOUSE 
 
Grid Ref:  294579 : 112514  
 
Applicant: Mr Patrick Hyde  
   
Location: Ashfield  

Seven Crosses Road  
Tiverton  
Devon  

   
Proposal: Erection of extensions to North East and South West elevations  
 
 
Date Valid:      3rd October 2025 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



AGENDA 26 

APPLICATION NO:  25/01364/HOUSE 
 
Site Visit: No       
 
COMMITTEE REASON 
 
This application is required to be considered by the Planning Committee, in line with the Council's 
adopted Scheme of Delegation, as the applicant is related to a member of staff at Mid Devon 
District Council 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Grant permission subject to conditions 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
The proposed development is for the erection of extensions to the northeast and southwest 
elevations of an existing detached bungalow. 
 
The application site is located on Seven Crosses Road, Tiverton, approximately 1km west of the 
town centre, which is within the defined Settlement Limit and comprises a detached single-storey 
bungalow with gardens to the front and rear. The property is bounded to the east and south by 
Seven Crosses Road and residential dwellings, with the northern and western boundaries 
comprising grazed pasture and woodland along the Cottey Brook. The dwelling is not listed and is 
not located within a conservation area. 
 
The proposal seeks to extend the northeast elevation by approximately 5.8m and the southwest 
elevation by approximately 7.55m. The extensions would create additional living accommodation 
including an extended master bedroom with dressing room and en-suite, a second bedroom with 
en-suite, and extended living/dining areas. The proposed extensions would feature pitched roofs 
matching the existing dwelling, with concrete block walls finished with brickwork skirt to match 
existing, concrete roof tiles, and white uPVC windows and doors to match the existing dwelling. 
The existing chimney on the southwest gable end would be removed as part of the works. 
 
APPLICANT’S SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Application form, existing and proposed plans, ecological appraisal (bats and birds). 
 
RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
 
80/01005/OUT - PERMIT date 19th September 1980Outline for the erection of a bungalow   
80/01647/FULL - PERMIT date 24th October 1980Detailed drawings for the erection of bungalow, 
garage and construction of new vehicular access   
80/01955/FULL - PERMIT date 8th December 1980Erection of stable block   
81/00465/FULL - PERMIT date 29th April 1981Temporary siting of residential caravan   
90/01538/FULL - REFUSE date 13th March 1991Erection of dwelling and garage and construction 
of new vehicular access   
91/00772/FULL - REFUSE date 4th July 1991Erection of dwelling and garage   
92/00883/FULL - REFUSE date 11th August 1992Erection of dwelling and garage and 
construction of new vehicular access   
 
 
 

Page 42



AGENDA 27 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES 
 
Mid Devon Local Plan Review 2013 – 2033 
S1 - Sustainable development priorities 
S9 - Environment 
S10 - Tiverton 
DM1 - High quality design 
DM3 - Transport and air quality 
DM11 - Residential extensions and ancillary development 
 
Tiverton Neighbourhood Plan 2020 to 2033 
T1 - Location and scale of development in Tiverton 
T4 - Character of development 
T5 - Design of development 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
TIVERTON TOWN COUNCIL  
Support. Discussed at the Tiverton Town Council Planning Committee meeting 20th October 2025. 
The Committee were in support of the application. 
 
DCC HIGHWAY AUTHORITY  
The Highway Authority has considered this application and has no comments to make. 
 
SOUTH WEST WATER  
Requiring compliance with the infiltration hierarchy  
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
This planning application has been advertised by means of a site notice in accordance with the 
legal requirements for publicity on planning applications, and the Council's Adopted Statement of 
Community Involvement October 2016. 
 
No letters of representation have been received at the time of writing this report. 
 
MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS 
 
The main material considerations for this application are considered to be that of: 
 

1. Principle/Policy 
2. High quality design 
3. Ecology and biodiversity considerations 
4. Highway safety and parking 

 
A summary assessment of the scheme against these considerations is set out below: 
 
     1. Principle/Policy 
 

1.1 S.38[6] of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that applications for 
planning permission must be determined in accordance with the Development Plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. The National Planning Policy Framework is noted 
as one such material consideration. The National Planning Policy Framework outlines three 
dependant objectives of sustainable development; economic, social and environmental. 

Page 43



AGENDA 28 

 
1.2 The Mid Devon Local Plan 2013-2033 was adopted in 2020 and the Tiverton 
Neighbourhood Plan formally 'made' on the 14th December 2022 following a successful 
referendum held on the 17th November 2022. 

 
1.3 Policy DM11 of the Mid Devon Local Plan 2013-2033 permits extensions to existing 
dwellings provided that they: 

a. Respect the character, scale, setting and design of the existing dwelling; 
      b. Will not result in over-development of the dwelling curtilage; and 
      c. Will not have a significantly adverse impact on the living conditions of occupants of  
        neighbouring properties.    

 
1.4 The proposal comprises extensions to two elevations that are appropriately scaled to the 
host dwelling. Both extensions remain single-storey with pitched roofs matching the existing 
dwelling. The materials proposed (concrete block with brickwork skirt, concrete roof tiles, white 
uPVC windows and doors) match the existing dwelling. The northeast extension projects 
approximately 5.8m and the southwest extension approximately 7.55m, which are considered 
proportionate to the original dwelling and respect its character, scale, setting and design. 
 
1.5 The property sits within a substantial residential curtilage in a semi-rural setting. The 
extensions would utilise areas currently comprising gardens and hardstanding. The 
development is considered to be of appropriate scale and does not result in over-development 
of the dwelling curtilage, maintaining adequate private amenity space to all elevations. 
 
1.6 The extensions are positioned such that they would not result in any adverse impact on 
neighbouring properties through overshadowing, overbearing impact or overlooking. The 
northeast extension faces open countryside with the nearest dwelling over 50m away. The 
southwest extension faces the property's own gardens and road frontage. The single-storey 
nature and positioning of the extensions ensures adequate separation distances are 
maintained from neighbouring properties. No objections have been received from neighbouring 
properties. 
 

      2. High quality design 
 
2.1 Policy DM1 of the Local Plan seeks to ensure high quality design according to a number of 
principles, including ensuring development makes an efficient use of a site and creates safe, 
accessible and visually attractive places. The policy also seeks to avoid adverse 
neighbourhood amenity impacts. Policy T5 (design of development) of the Tiverton 
Neighbourhood Plan also outlines that 'Development proposals should incorporate a high 
quality of design, which responds and integrates well with its surroundings, meets the 
changing needs of local residents and minimises the impact on the natural and historic 
environment'. 
 
2.2 The proposal demonstrates high quality design through its sympathetic approach to the 
existing dwelling. The use of matching materials (concrete block with brickwork skirt, concrete 
roof tiles, white uPVC windows and doors), appropriate scale and the continuation of the 
existing architectural language represents thoughtful design that maintains visual harmony 
with the existing dwelling and surrounding area. The pitched roofs match the existing roof form 
and the extensions are subservient to the main dwelling. The development is therefore 
considered to comply with the above policies. 

 
      3.Ecology and biodiversity considerations 

 

Page 44



AGENDA 29 

3.1 A comprehensive ecological appraisal has been undertaken by Moor to Sea Ecology, a 
qualified ecological consultancy. The assessment identified two statutory designated sites 
within a 2km radius (Palmerston Park Wood Local Nature Reserve approximately 0.5km to the 
southeast, and Grand Western Canal Country Park LNR approximately 1.7km to the east), 
however due to the distance and nature of the proposed works, the extensions are extremely 
unlikely to affect the designated sites. 
 
3.2 The desk study identified five European Protected Species Mitigation (EPSM) licences for 
bats within a 2km radius, indicating an active bat population in the local area. The preliminary 
roost appraisal identified approximately 25 bat droppings confirmed by DNA analysis to be 
soprano pipistrelle on the internal southwest gable wall within the loft space. Two dusk 
emergence surveys undertaken in May and June 2025, together with a period of static bat 
detector monitoring, confirmed that a single soprano pipistrelle day and night roost is present 
within the loft space. The bat accesses the roost via a gap in the fascia near the chimney on 
the southwest gable end. 

  
3.3 As the proposed works include removing the chimney on the southwest gable end, this will 
destroy the soprano pipistrelle bat roost. Regulation 9 (5) of the Conservation of Habitats and 
Species Regulations 2017 ("the Regulations") provides that, "A competent authority, in 
exercising any of their functions, must have regard to the requirements of the Habitats 
Directive so far as they may be affected by the exercise of those functions". In exercising their 
duty, the Local Planning Authority should assess the proposal against the three derogation 
tests of the Habitats Regulations 2017, these being: 

 

  The development must meet a purpose of 'preserving public health or 
public safety or other imperative reasons of overriding public interest 
including those of a social or economic nature and beneficial 
consequences of primary importance for the environment 

  There is no satisfactory alternative 

  The development 'will not be detrimental to the maintenance of the 
population of the species concerned at a favourable conservation 
status in their natural range 

 
3.4 In assessing the first two of these tests, it is considered that the proposal satisfies them. 
The proposed works would provide improved and additional living accommodation for the 
existing dwelling, maintain a viable family home and support the ongoing use of an existing 
property within the district. The extensions are domestic in nature and represent a one-off 
proposal specific to this site, with no realistic alternative means of achieving the improvement 
without affecting the existing structure. 
 
3.5 With regard to the third test, the Moor to Sea Ecology Ecological Appraisal dated August 
2025 confirms that a single soprano pipistrelle day and night roost is present within the loft 
space, accessed via a gap near the chimney on the southwest gable end. Appropriate 
mitigation and compensation measures are secured by condition prior to works commencing, 
ecological supervision during removal of the chimney and tile stripping, installation of 
temporary bat box and permanent bat roost tube, and the implementation of a sensitive 
lighting strategy to avoid illumination of bat roosting features, hedgerows, the brook and trees. 
These measures will offset the loss of the existing roosting habitat and ensure that the 
favourable conservation status of the bat population will be maintained. 

 
3.6 No evidence of nesting birds was noted within the loft spaces or on the exterior of the 
bungalow. However, crevices in the roof noted as suitable for roosting bats could also be used 

Page 45



AGENDA 30 

by nesting birds. The ecological appraisal recommends that works avoid the main nesting bird 
season (March to end of August) or, if not possible, an updated nesting bird check should be 
undertaken. Enhancement measures include the installation of nest boxes suitable for robins, 
blue tits and wrens. These measures are secured by condition. 
 
4. Highway safety and parking 
 
4.1 The development is not considered to significantly affect existing parking arrangements or 
access to the public highway. The Highway Authority has raised no objections to the proposal. 
The proposal does not encroach on existing parking or access arrangements and therefore 
has no impact in respect to highway safety. 

 
REASON FOR/ APPROVAL  
 

The proposed development is considered to be acceptable, satisfactorily relating to the 
character and appearance of the existing property and its surroundings. The extensions are 
appropriately scaled, use matching materials, and respect the design of the host dwelling. 
There will be no unacceptable impact on neighbouring living conditions as a result of the 
proposed development, no adverse impact on highway safety, and appropriate ecological 
mitigation and enhancement measures have been proposed to address the impact on 
protected species. The comprehensive supporting information demonstrates that all relevant 
considerations have been properly addressed. For these reasons it is considered appropriate 
to recommend approval with conditions necessary to ensure the success of the development 
in this location. The proposal therefore accords with policies S1, S9, S10, DM1, DM3, and 
DM11 of the Mid Devon Local Plan 2013-2033 and T1, T4, T5 of Tiverton Neighbourhood Plan 
2020 to 2033 and guidance in the National Planning Policy Framework 

 
CONDITIONS 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
plans listed in the schedule on the decision notice. 
 
3. The ecological mitigation and enhancement measures detailed in the Moor to Sea Ecology 
Ecological Appraisal (Bats & Birds) dated August 2025, including, provision of temporary and 
permanent bat roosting features, ecological supervision, lighting restrictions, and installation of 
bird nest boxes, shall be implemented in full in accordance with the submitted Conservation 
Action Statement prior to first occupation of the extensions and maintained thereafter. 

 
4. Notwithstanding details indicated in the Application Form, prior to the first use of the 
development hereby permitted, provision shall be made for the reuse of surface water on site 
or drainage within the curtilage of the dwelling house, in a manner that meets with the Run-off 
Destination Hierarchy (as detailed in South West Water comments, dated 15th of October, 
2025) so that none drains onto the County Highway, or is disposed of into the South West 
Water mains sewer, unless it has been first demonstrated that disposal higher up the hierarchy 
of drainage options is not reasonably practicable. Where reuse of surface water on site, or 
disposal via ground infiltration methods, is not reasonably practicable, details of the proposed 
drainage scheme, including justification for not using a method higher up the Surface Water 
Run-off Destination Hierarchy, shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority prior to its installation. Once installed, such drainage provision shall be 
permanently retained and maintained thereafter. 

Page 46



AGENDA 31 

 
REASONS FOR CONDITIONS 
 

1. In accordance with provisions of Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004. 
 
2. For the avoidance of doubt in the interests of proper planning. 

 
3. In the interests of biodiversity protection and enhancement in accordance with Policies S9   
and DM1 of the Mid Devon Local Plan 2013-2033. 

 
 4.To ensure that the development provides appropriate drainage and does not increase flood 
risk elsewhere, in accordance with Policy DM4 of the Mid Devon Local Plan. 

 
CONDITIONS 
 
Biodiversity Duty Action Plan – Yes 
Condition 3 
 
INFORMATIVES 
 
In accordance with paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework the Council has 
worked in a positive and pro-active way and has granted planning permission. 
 
The case officer has not carried out a site visit in the determination of the application. The officer 
has instead considered the application using maps, photographs and other information and 
considers that to determine the application without a site visit would not prejudice any interested 
party. 
 
The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights Act, and in 
particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself. This Act gives further effect to 
the rights included in the European Convention on Human Rights. In arriving at this 
recommendation, due regard has been given to the applicant's reasonable development rights and 
expectations which have been balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as 
expressed through third party interests / the Development Plan and Central Government 
Guidance. 
 
BNG – Biodiversity Net Gain 
No  
 
Householder development 
 
The effect of paragraph 13 of Schedule 7A to the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 is that 
planning permission granted for development of land in England is deemed to have been granted 
subject to the condition (biodiversity gain condition) that development may not begin unless: 
 

(a) a Biodiversity Gain Plan has been submitted to the planning authority, and 
(b) the planning authority has approved the plan.  
 

The planning authority, for the purposes of determining whether to approve a Biodiversity Gain 
Plan, if one is required in respect of this permission would be Mid Devon District Council. 
 

Page 47



AGENDA 32 

There are statutory exemptions and transitional arrangements which mean that the biodiversity 
gain condition does not always apply. These are listed below.  
 
Based on the information available this permission is considered to be one which will not require 
the approval of a biodiversity gain plan before development is begun because one or more of the 
statutory exemptions or transitional arrangements in the list below is/are considered to apply. 
  
 
Statutory exemptions and transitional arrangements in respect of the biodiversity gain condition. 
 
Development which is subject of a householder application within the meaning of article 2(1) of the 
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015. A 
“householder application” means an application for planning permission for development for an 
existing dwellinghouse, or development within the curtilage of such a dwellinghouse for any 
purpose incidental to the enjoyment of the dwellinghouse which is not an application for change of 
use or an application to change the number of dwellings in a building 
 
 
The Human Rights Act 1998 came into force on 2nd October 2000. It requires all public authorities 
to act in a way which is compatible with the European Convention on Human Rights. This report 
has been prepared in light of the Council's obligations under the Act with regard to decisions to be 
informed by the principles of fair balance and non-discrimination. 
 

Page 48



MRPNOD 1 

 

Major Applications with no Decision – Between 19.11.25 and 15.12.25 
 
Members are asked to note that some major applications will be dealt with under the delegation scheme. Members are also requested to direct any questions about 
these applications to the relevant case officer. It was resolved at the meeting of Planning Committee on 21st March 2018 that with the exception of small scale 
proposals, applications for ground mounted solar PV arrays recommended for approval be brought before the Committee for determination. 
 
 
. 
 

Application No Target Date Location Proposal Name Expected 
Decision Level 

      

 
25/01460/MARM 

 
10th March 2026 

 
Land at NGR 303312 
107660 (Plot 6) 
Stoneyford 
Devon 

 
Reserved Matters 
(appearance, landscaping, 
layout and scale) for the 
erection of an office building 
and 100 storage containers 
(Use Classes E(g), B2 and B8) 
on Plot 6, following Outline 
approval 20/01409/MOUT 

 
Ms Tina Maryan 

 
DEL 

 

25/01496/MFUL 
 
18th February 2026 

 
Former Police Station 
The Avenue 
Tiverton 
Devon 
 
 

 
Variation of condition 2 of 
planning permission 
23/00152/MFUL (Conversion 
of main building to 8 flats and 
erection of 6 dwellings with 
associated parking and 
landscaping following 
demolition of cell block and 
office annexe) to allow 
substitute plans relating to 
layout and design of the main 
building 

 
Mrs Christie 
McCombe 

 
DEL 

      

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 8



MRPNOD 2 

Application No Target Date Location Proposal Name Expected 
Decision Level 

25/01596/MFUL 27th February 2026 Mount Pleasant Inn & 
Land at NGR 283630 
113851 
Nomansland 
Tiverton 
Devon 
EX16 8NN 
 

Change of use of store, garage 
and dwelling to a butchery, 
shop and cafe to include the 
erection of a marquee and 
change of use of agricultural 
land to form a car park to 
serve the Mount Pleasant Inn 
to include electric vehicle 
charging points 

Mr Adrian 
Devereaux 

DEL 

 

25/01642/MARM 
 
19th February 2026 

 
Land at NGR 305210 
108255 
Horn Road 
Kentisbeare 
Devon 
 
 

 
Variation of Condition 2 of 
planning permission 
23/00101/MARM - Reserved 
Matters for a new cricket 
facility consisting of 2 storey 
pavilion, scorers hut, ground 
equipment store, outdoor 
cricket nets, landscaping and 
parking following Outline 
approval 20/01452/MOUT - to 
allow revised plans following a 
minor redesign of pavilion 

 
Ms Tina Maryan 

 
DEL 

 

25/01638/MOUT 
 
20th February 2026 

 
Land at NGR 303878 
111905 
West of The B3181 
Uffculme 
Devon 
 
 

 
Outline with all matters except 
access reserved for the 
erection of up to 170 dwellings, 
pedestrian and cycle facilities, 
associated open space and 
SUD's drainage 

 
Ms Tina Maryan 

 
DEL 

 

25/01652/MOUT 
 
23rd March 2026 

 
Tiverton Eastern Urban 
Extension (Area B) 
Land to The South of 
Post Hill &  Mayfair & 

 
Hybrid application for the 
erection of up to 650 dwellings 
consisting of 161 dwellings, 
vehicle accesses, estate 

 
Mrs Christie 
McCombe 

 
DEL 

P
age 50



MRPNOD 3 

Application No Target Date Location Proposal Name Expected 
Decision Level 

West of Manley Lane 
Tiverton 
Devon 
 

roads, pedestrian and cycle 
connections, SUDs, public 
open space, landscaping and 
associated works in detail 
together with outline proposals 
(to establish access only) for 
the erection of up to 489 
dwellings, care/retirement  
home (Use Class C2/C3), up 
to 1000sqm of commercial 
floorspace (Class E and F.2), 
public open space and 
associated works reserved 

 

25/01701/MOUT 
 
12th March 2026 

 
Land at NGR 303391 
107621 (Plot 7) 
Stoneyford 
Devon 
 
 

 
Variation of condition 24 of 
Planning Permission 
20/01409/MOUT (Outline 
hybrid application for the 
erection of industrial units 
within use Classes E(g), B2 
and B8 on 8.74 hectares of 
land to include green 
infrastructure and Full 
permission for the erection of 4 
industrial units (Plots 5, 9 and 
10) (4327sqm) Classes E(g), 
B2 and B8 and creation of new 
vehicular access, parking, 
detention basin and 
landscaping) to allow for an 
additional mixed use of E(a) 
and F1(a) on Plot 7 

 
Ms Tina Maryan 

 
DEL 

 

25/01736/MFUL 
 
12th March 2026 

 
Garages and Forecourt 
Roundhill 

 
Demolition of existing garages 
and erection of 12 affordable 

 
Mr John Millar 

 
COMM 

P
age 51



MRPNOD 4 

Application No Target Date Location Proposal Name Expected 
Decision Level 

Tiverton 
Devon 
 
 

homes with parking, 
landscaping and associated 
works 

      

 
 

P
age 52



INDEX REPORT 1 

 

LIST OF APPEAL DECISIONS FROM 20.11.25 – 15.12.25 
 
 

Application No Description Location Officer 
Recommendation 

Committee or 
Delegated  

Decision Appeal Type Inspector 
Decision 

         
 

 23/00248/OPDEV 
 
Appeal against Enforcement 
Notice Change of Use and 
Operational Development 
issued 14/04/25 - Appellants 
grounds for appeal are b, f and 
g 

 
Land at NGR 310236 
115114 (Bartletts) 
Culmstock 
Devon 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Enf Informal 
Hearing   

 
Appeal 
Dismissed 

 
 
24/00848/FULL  

 
Change of use of agricultural 
land to allow the siting of 1 
mobile home and associated 
works for the use of gypsy and 
traveller family (Revised 
Scheme) 

 
South Fork 
Culmstock 
Cullompton 
Devon 
EX15 3HW 
 

 
Refuse permission 

 
Delegated Decision 

 
Refuse 
permission 

 
Informal Hearing   

 
Appeal 
Allowed 

 
 
24/01548/PNCOU  

 
Prior notification for the change 
of use of an agricultural building 
to 4 dwellings under Class Q 

 
Land and Building at 
NGR 304416 119135 
(Borehole Barn) 
Lee Wood 
Hockworthy 
Devon 
 
 

 
Refusal of Prior 
Approval 

 
Delegated Decision 

 
Refusal of Prior 
Approval 

 
Written 
Representations   

 
Appeal 
Dismissed 

 
 
 25/00046/OPDEV 

 
Appellants grounds for appeal 
are b,c,d,f and g. 

 
Land at NGR 305111 
111808 (Adj. 
Pleasant Streams) 
Uffculme 
Devon 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Enf Public Inquiry   

 
Appeal 
Dismissed 

 
 
24/01701/OUT  

 
Removal of condition (c) of 
planning permission 
EN.12164/X (agricultural 

 
Leigh Haven 
Loxbeare 
Tiverton 

 
Refuse permission 

 
Delegated Decision 

 
Refuse 
permission 

 
Written 
Representations   

 
Appeal 
Dismissed 

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 9



INDEX REPORT 2 

Application No Description Location Officer 
Recommendation 

Committee or 
Delegated  

Decision Appeal Type Inspector 
Decision 

occupancy restriction) to enable 
unrestricted occupation of 
dwelling 

Devon 
EX16 8DA 
 

 
 

        

 
 

P
age 54


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	7 THE PLANS LIST
	8 MAJOR APPLICATIONS WITH NO DECISION
	9 APPEAL DECISIONS

